From: SM-Defra-RESP-notifications (DEFRA)

To: Dylan Thomas

Cc: Hemsley, Tamara; Venning, Sarah; Wakefield, Charlie

Subject: EPR/CP3994ZR/V006 Schedule 5 Notice CRM:0071024

Date: 25 April 2024 14:29:35

Attachments: Application variation - Notice of request for more information under schedule 5 of EPR 250424.pdf

FAO: The Company Director
Dear Dylan,

As discussed, please see attached schedule 5 notice. If you have any queries or you
want to arrange a meeting to discuss the Schedule 5 Notice questions, please contact
Sarah Venning in the first instance.

To submit your response, please respond directly to this email and copy in myself and
Sarah Venning.

Kind regards,

Tamara Hemsley
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Notice of request for more information

The Environmental Permitting (England & Wales) Regulations 2016

Director — Steven Longdon

3 Sidings Court
White Rose Way
Doncaster

DN4 5NU

Application number: EPR/CP3994ZR/V006

The Environment Agency, in exercise of its powers under paragraph 4 of Part 1 of
Schedule 5 of the above Regulations, requires you to provide the information detailed in
the attached schedule. The information is required in order to determine your application
for a permit duly made on 12/01/2024.

Send the information to either the email or postal address below by 23/05/2024. If we do
not receive this information by the date specified then we may treat your application as
having been withdrawn or it may be refused. If this happens you may lose your application
fee.

Email address: Tamara.Hemsley@environment-agency.gov.uk.

Postal address:

Permitting Support, NPS Sheffield
Quadrant 2

99 Parkway Avenue

Parkway Business Park

Sheffield
S9 4WF

Name Date
Tamara Hemsley 25/04/2024

Authorised on behalf of the Environment Agency





Notes
These notes do not form part of this notice.

Please note that we charge £1,200 where we have to send a third or subsequent
information notice in relation to the same issue. We consider this to be the first notice on
the issues covered in this notice.

The notes in italics that appear after information requests in the attached schedule do not
form part of the notice. The notes are intended to assist you in providing a full response.

Schedule

1.0 Site Hydraulics and Hydrogeological Setting

1.1 Long term groundwater levels:
¢ Confirm whether groundwater levels will be managed in the long term;
¢ Confirm the anticipated groundwater rebound level is following suspension of groundwater
management;
e Confirm SKO3 is outside of the influence of the dewatering of the quarry void.

Reason: The elevation of the long term groundwater table is fundamental to the assessment of the
risks posed by the site to the water environment. Information presented for groundwater
management (supporting statement) states, “there is no requirement for groundwater management
aside from continued pumping within the parameters of the current discharge consent to prevent
overspill and potential localised flooding.” This implies groundwater management will continue ad
infinitum. It is unclear what assessments have been undertaken to continue the management of
groundwater following infilling of the void, what assessments of the quality of that groundwater will
be and how this relates to the regulation of the current discharge consent.

If in the long term groundwater is not proposed to be managed, further information is required with
respect to the long term groundwater level. The Application (Supporting Statement and HRA)
indicate that this is based on the water levels recorded in SK03. The appropriateness of this
approach to the establishment of the long term groundwater rebound level is queried when
submitted information also suggests that the water levels within SKO3 may be influenced by the
managed water levels within the quarry void and therefore not reflective of natural conditions. The
information includes:

o WRPAPP3 Pumping Estimates: Pumping volumes suggest SKO03 is within the radius of
influence of the drawdown to the void,

e Groundwater contours presented on Figure HRAL imply SKO3 lies within the cone of
depression around the flooded void,

¢ Significant/ unexpectedly steep hydraulic gradient between SK04 and SK02 presented on
Figure HRAL are unreflective of the site specific permeability quoted as 41m/d.

¢ A spring is shown on OS map in adjacent field (312m NE at approximately 24 mAOD)
which if using the reported hydraulic gradient 0.03 (AppHRA3-NE Sidewall Dilution
Calculations) would suggest a rebound level of circa 33mAOD, however it is not considered
that 0.03 is reflective of a natural groundwater gradient and that this should be reviewed as
part of the response.

Therefore, in order to progress the application, we require a detailed evaluation of the groundwater
levels following suspension of management control (pumping from both the flooded void and any
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abstraction from the back water drains) such that the level would realistically represent the likely
natural groundwater conditions.

Furthermore, due consideration should be given to the effects of climate change on long term
groundwater levels. This information is required to ensure that the wastes placed above the water
table remain above the water table, in the short medium and long term to enable compliance with
Schedule 22 to EPR 2016.

1.2 Provide water balance calculations relating to the surface water discharge comprising:

¢ Current volume of surface water discharged to existing quarry void,

e Future volumes of water to be discharged to restored wetland areas including climate
change factor,

¢ How the change in permeability associated with the infilling of the void has been taken into
account in the estimation of water levels and infiltration capacity within the wetland area, in
relation to retained water levels including storm events,

e Confirmation of any discharge from the restored void to adjacent surface water including
monitoring and compliance limits in the short, medium and long term scenarios.

Reason: Due to the nature of the proposed restoration soils, further information is required to
demonstrate that the soils ‘placed above the watertable’ will remain above the watertable and the
site will comply with Schedule 22 of the EPR 2016. Further information is required that there will be
no direct discharge of hazardous substance or pollution by non hazardous substances including
high sediment yields.

2.0 Site Infilling and Restoration Proposals

2.1 Provide estimates of:

¢ the relative thickness and volumes of the wastes to be deposited into water, above the
rebound water table and restorations soils.

¢ Confirm any ‘freeboard’ that may be present between the top of the ‘below groundwater
table tipped waste’ and the assumed long term groundwater level.

Reason: It is recognised within the Application that the majority of the infill will be deposited directly
into water based on the assumed groundwater level. Given the differences in the proposed waste
streams, further confidence is required that the potential variability in groundwater levels has been
accounted for in the assessment.

There is a conflict between the WRP which states 1m for restoration soils whereas the Supporting
document states 2m. It is also unclear if these will be present in the saturated wetland area.

2.2. Provide a method statement indicating how the filling process will be controlled to prevent the
discharge of high sediment loads in the short medium and long term periods.

Reason. It is unclear whether there will be the potential for any surface water discharge during the
operations when the waste will be tipped directly into the flooded void. There is no assessment of
how the resultant sediment loads will be managed with respect to any discharges from the site.





3.0 Waste Acceptance
3.1 Waste Acceptance Subwater Table Soils:

e Revise Table SS1 (supporting document) for the natural baseline chemistry associated with
the Magnesian Limestone.

Reason: The Application identifies that materials used in the construction of an attenuation layer
have to have a pollution potential less than, or equal to, the natural quality of the surrounding
geology and water. This statement is considered to exclude baseline data which may have been
impacted by anthropogenic activities such as the dilute and disperse facility and as such the values
presented in Table SS1 are not considered to be acceptable.

With regards to the natural groundwater chemistry we note that groundwater data presented in
AppHRAZ2.R2 — Skelbrooke LFS GWQ221223 spans over 12 years of development history of the
site. Noting that there is an area of dilute and disperse landfill, the older data is not considered to
be reflective of current groundwater quality. The last 5-6 years of data is considered more valid of
the improving groundwater quality, as there are a number of boreholes with significantly better
groundwater which are unlikely to have been impacted by the adjacent site or neighbouring dilute
and disperse facility. The waste acceptance criteria for subwater table waste should reflect these
natural (unimpacted) conditions. The WAC values presented in Table SS1 are not considered to
be acceptable and these should be derived based on the natural geology.

For the avoidance of doubt, any hazardous substance should be less than detection limit and
therefore table SS2 would not apply to subwater table waste in the absence of an attenuation
layer.

3.2. The waste acceptance procedures contained within the Supporting Statement WR7640/04.R2
acknowledges the sensitivity of the proposal and indicates that all waste to be place below the
water table will be subject to testing, however we need you to provide further details on the
frequency of the testing by the provider. We note that the proposed sub water table waste can
only be accepted without testing if they:

a. come from a single source.

b. are well characterised (chemically) and described.

c. carry no risk of contamination, for example from a site that hasn’t previously been
developed.

Reason: The Application places heavy reliance on the waste acceptance procedures to ensure that
the quality of the proposed restoration materials - meet the necessary minimum standards for use
at the site and its environmental setting. Additional information is required to demonstrate that
there is sufficient control given the sensitivity of the groundwater environment.

3.3. Waste acceptance for material to be deposited above groundwater:

¢ Notwithstanding the amendments to Table SS1 required by Question 5 above, confirmation
is required that waste to be placed between the rebound water level and the restoration
soils will be assessed against the revised targets in SS1.





Reason: The waste list details additional codes for waste to be place above the water table. These
include waste streams that require testing such as 19.12.12 and 10.13.14, where there is a
reasonable likelihood that contaminants of concern are present.

¢ Should the waste above the rebound water table not meet the requirements of the revised
SS1, provide an assessment of the risks posed by this material to the surface and
groundwater environments.

Reason: The application is not clear on this aspect. Currently there is a disparity between the
waste above and below the water table with no degree of certainty that the long-term water table
has been identified, nor is it clear that this waste has been included in the extant risk assessments.

3.4. Restoration soils:

o Provide Restoration soils waste acceptance criteria (WAC) protective of the water
environment.

e Provide appropriate assessment of the risks to groundwater and surface water from the
Restoration soils.

Reason: Table SS3 and SS4 provide WAC concentrations derived from the risks posed to human
health with a modification to reduce potential phytotoxic elements. These assessment values are
not applicable to the risks posed to the groundwater or surface water environments. Furthermore,
the site is located in a sensitive groundwater environment, that being a principal aquifer with
springs ~300m from the site and as such the WAC are not considered to be appropriate.

In addition it is not clear how the risks posed by the higher WAC criteria have been undertaken
within the HRA. Of particular note is the risk to surface water contained within the engineered
wetland area and any further release to the wider environment from this area.

4. Risk Assessment and Associated Requisite Surveillance

4.1 Present a risk assessment reflective of the conceptual model in the short medium and long
terms.

Reason: ConSim is not designed to model risks from saturated contaminated materials contained
beneath the water table and is not considered to be appropriate to assess the risks based on the
presented conceptual model. The model files are not accessible at this time, however based on
the information presented within the HRA, the source term requires further revision and
consideration - as it does not appear to reflect the potential contaminant concentrations proposed
for restoration soils, nor the likely shallow lateral pathways to principal aquifer. The model implies
a vertical migration pathway down to the Permian Marl as opposed to lateral migration through the
waste by groundwater contained within the Brotherton Formation. A review of the contaminants of
concern should be undertaken and the use of sulphate as an indicator substance should be
considered.

The current lateral side wall leakage model input parameters require review and further justification
as it appears the groundwater levels used in the model are not reflective of the conceptual model.
Further consideration is also required with respect to the modelled source term and the potential
for saturation of the restoration soils in the short medium and long term.

The models should reflect the proposed future use of the site to receive surface water from the
adjacent site. We require a risk assessment that reflects the conceptual model and reflects the





long term future use of the site, i.e. enhanced infiltration associated with the wetland area receiving
surface water from the adjacent landfill facility.

4.2. Environmental monitoring proposals

¢ Review monitoring parameters in relation to likely substances to be found in inert waste;
¢ Reviewl/justify frequency of monitoring during the operational filling period with respect to the
substance used as indicator species.

Reason: Currently the timescales for the infilling of the void have not been stated, and it is observed
that monitoring parameters are more reflective of the adjacent non hazardous facility than the
proposed waste streams at the site. A review of the contaminants of concern should focus on
indicator substances reflective of the proposed waste streams. Due consideration should be given to
the inclusion of sulphate and mobile metals. The frequency of monitoring should also represent the
risks posed at each stage of development. The extant proposals currently only monitor metals and,
sulphate on an annual basis. This is not considered to be sufficiently protective of the water
environment. A fully justified monitoring regime should accompany the proposals. It is acknowledged
that Darrington Quarries Limited wish to combine the monitoring with the adjacent landfill, however
this is not considered to be a justifiable reason for a reduced monitoring frequency. It is not
considered that the monitoring adequately reflects the risks posed by the activities in a high
sensitivity groundwater environment, noting that the peak risk from the proposed DfR activity is time
limited (which will be reflected in the conditions included in any future permit for the activity)

Please note: Where there are significant updates required to documents associated with the
application, we would ask that you provide a summary reference table (an example is attached) to
show which elements in the revised documents have been changed or added to answer the
guestions in the schedule 5 response. This will reduce the time we have to spend reviewing the
documents.






